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The first stone scheool building built
in Osage County for the children of
white seitlers may scon be torn down.
A final decision will be made at the
rext meeting of the School Board, Tues-
day, July 6, at 7:30 p.m., in the High
Sehool. The meeting is open to the
public.

The building is located on the grounds
at Horace Mann School. Except for re-
mraval of the bell, (sho ' in ahove pir-
ture), it remains much as it was when
constructed in 1904.

Back in 1804, the only other public
school was a frame building at Paw-
huska. Indian children attended schools
built by Government funds. Hominy
was little more than a trading post for
the white settlers and the Osage Indians
at that time. )

Those early settlers realized the im-
portance of educating their children so
they got together and planned the
school. Among the group were Dr. Ira
Mullins, Printice Price, Frederick
Drummond and others.

Eventually, the U.S. Government
approved the townsite of Hominy and
~ranted permission for construction of
:ne school. Funds to build the school
came from individuals and other
sources including a donation from Ar-
meur Packing Company.

On another occasion, the setilers
raffled off a fine new buggy. The lucky
winner gave it back and it was raffled
off again. This winner gave it back for
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@ third raffie and $300.00 was raised ¢n
the project. A stonemason named Mr.
Truelick and a carpenter named Mr.
Wilsen did the building. Everyone else
helped any way they could.

Construction was complete before
the townsite survey was complete. The
planners figured a survey might alter
present lines, so they built the school
back from the supposed survey line.
This rroved wise, since the lines chang-
ed by many feet. .

Students came to the sch ol from
miles around. Parents had to pay a tul-
tion fee. making this the first public
school operated by subscription. A
teacher was needed, so Dr. Ira Mulins
sent for one back to his home state of
Virginia. The first schoolmaster was a
young man who still lives in Hominy.
His name was G. K. Sutherland.

This stone building remained a
Hominy's only school until 1809. It was
also used as a social center, and as a
community church each Sunday. Then
in 1909 citizens voted a $40,000 bond
issue to construct the old Horace NMann
Building. It was a landmark for man:
vears. Then it was torn down to m
room for the new Horace JMann buiid
ing. _

No record is available showins how
nany voungsters attended the Itk
stone schoolhouse, but it would numbe:
many “undred. Whether the buildin:
will be destroyed or not hinges on
school hoard decision Monday night.
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OKLAHOMA HISTORICAL SOCIETY
HISTORICAL BUILDING

—~——

OKLAHOMA CITY 5. OKLAHOMA Res Easement of p]_ot
) for on~site historical
July 1, 1965 marker- 13t school bldg
MEMO ¢ 190 at Hominy.

To Mr, Louls Field, Hominy News, Hominy, Oklahoma

Copy of "Easement ™ enclosed to secure plot for erection of on-site
marker = 1lst public school building at Hominy, Osage County, 1900~
This " Easement " properly filled out and signed, made out to the
Oklahoma Historical Societyy Oklehoma Caty, for proposed erection

of on=site hilstorical marker for 1lst public school bldg. at Hominy,
190, under the auspices of the Oklahoma Historical Society, , = -

St s / L
Muriel H, Wright, Ed.
Oklahoma Historical Society
Historical Bldge
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73105

7
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(COpy) ; November 12, 1965

Dear Mr. Costner -- {

Recently in the newspaper I noted your work with the Kerr Foundation per -
taining to historical lore. This letter is in regards to such matters.

We have in Hominy an old stone 2 room school building -- the stone for this
building was quarried in our area. It was built in 1904 by public subscription. It is
the oldest permanent school building for white children in Osage County and was also
used for church services before statehood. I mention white children because the
Osage Indians had their own schools --

Unfortunately this building is located in the middle of the block, and on the
south side of the block is a new modern grade school which accomodates the first
four grades.

We have a new superintendent in our school system who thinks this old building
distracts from the looks of our newer buildings, and he has convinced the school
board thatxis it should be destroyed. The building is in good repair needdng paint
on the windows and doors -- and perhaps a new roof -- however the old roof doesn't

leak. We would like to paint the inside also and perhaps turn the building into a
museum or library.

Several of the town people have attended two school board meetings pleading
to keep the old building. We have formed an historical society and obtained signers

on a petition promising to maintain the building, but after the last meeting, we were
told the building would be destroyed July 1, 1966.

Highways 20 and 99 bisect our town, and we have been informed by the Okla=
home Historical Society that we can get highway markers calling attention to our old

school house. There is to be a feature article in the Tulsa World soon pertaining
to this building.

(The following is crossed out: We haven't given up hopes for saving this building
as yet, and we are seeking any information we can obtain on anything else we can do.
If you have any suggestions would you please advise?)

It seems a shame that 5 or 6 people can destroy something that so many others

wish to keep -- If you have any suggestions as to anything else we can do would you
please advise ?

Sincerely --
Mrs. Gent. Drummond

319 So. Wood St.
Hominy, Oklahoma
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By AL SYLVESTER

Of The World Staff
HOMINY — The first stone
school building in Osage County
!is about to become a thing of the
past. apparently because it is *“‘in
the way.” Some Hominy residents
disagree, thus a pro and con dis-

pute is in full sway.

The historic “Little Rock
School.” Hominy’s only school un-
til 1009, still sits squarely in the

““\“ o

middle of the block at Horace!

Mann elementary school where it
was built in 1904. Therein, lies the
problem.

“It's just in the way, sitting
right in the middle of the play-
ground,” says Aron Dodson, who
has been superintendent since
moving here two years ago. “And
the children get behind the build-
ing so teachers can't see them|
during recess.” ;

The school board has agreed to |

give the building to the Hominy i The board decided the building since destroyed, at

Plan to Raze Old School Results in Tiff

Hominy Landmark May Vanish

Historical Society — to be moved ; had to go,” says Mrs. Leva Drum-

to another location.

History-minded citizens say the ' sociely. *“They keep saying the'!

{mond, president of the historical

building would lose some of its ! building is in the way but it hasn't -
significance if moved to ancther | been in the way for the past 60!

location, and point out that moving ! years.” -

costs would be prohibitive,

|
i
\

[ The “Little Rock School,” as |

The school board has said the ' graduates have proudly called it, !
stone building must be torn down  was the first school opened in the
or meved at end of the current: county for benefit of white set-

school term.

I tlers' children.

“We just got the cold shoulder.! There was a frame building. long |

3 ~.

—Wor\l‘; S'tixﬂ’l’ho
Mrs. Drummond and Sutherland inspect historic ‘“Little Rock School”

Pawhuska, !
which had been established to!
teach children of the Osage Indian
tribe. " i
Hominy's first school teacher,

G. K. Sutherland, recalls that town

leaders summoned him all the way

from Virginia where he was mak-

ing $27.50 a month as a second-

year teacher.

“They wired that they'd pay me
$80 a month and I wired back to
send me some sort of written con-
tract. I figured Fd get rich all at
once.” Sutherland said.

Sutherland recalls that Hominy
was pretty much of a “blanket
Indian town"™ when he first came,
White men had to have special per-
mits to even be in the Osage Na-
tion, and a deputy U.S. marshal
quickly challenged the newcomer.

“He told me it was all right.
that they didn't charge preachers
or teachers,” Sutherland said.

Now aged and retired, Suther-
land feels that tearing down the
stone building would be destroyinz
an irreplacable part of the town's
past.

“We should preserve this. It's
history already and it’s going to
get more important,” Sutherland
said. “Once the building's torn
down we won't be able to undo it."”

School hoard members say they |
can't understand why other citi-
zens feel so deeply about tearing’
down or moving the building,
which now needs repairs on the !
floor.

“There's some talk of opening a
kind of museum in the building

“and making it a kind of town-

i shrine,” said Dodson. “But can)
(you imagine such a thing? It
. seems unreasonable to think of
having a museum right in the
middle of your school grounds.”

Mrs. Drummond and Sutherland
point out that Pawhuska has had |
success in establishing and oper-
ating a county museum in the Tri-
angle Building there. |

“There’'s so many things that
are available now, valuable mo-
mentos from the past, if we jus:
‘had a place to keep and exhibi
them,” said Mrs. Drummond
“Why not a museum on scho !
rgrounds? Schools and museum
‘are both for learning.”

L [

o




Box 387
Poteau, Oklahoma
December 3, 1965

Mrs.Leva Drummond, President
Hominy Historical Society
319 South Wood

Hominy, Oklahoma

Dear Mrs, Drummond:

To begin with, I want to explain a matter of this kind is not anything
thzt the historical society can meddle with. *We have no authority nor
Jurisdiction,

However, I would like to make a modest proposal as a personal mztter
that I hooe will be accepted.

1. 4sk the local board of education to deed to the state of Cklahoma a
tract of land approximately 20' by 20' on some site on the school grount!
where there would be suitatble parking for visitors, at least on weekendn:

2. Select from the building the very finest stones in such aquantities
as would build a2 good base which should come three or four layers above
the surface of the ground so that the original stone would be clearly
visible to the public.

3. Raise in monies betwesen £500 and $400 and send it to Mr, Elmer Frakei.
Executive Director of Oklahoma Historical Society, State Capitol Buildini:
Ctlahoma City, Oklahoma. The money will be deposited in the Oklahoma
Stete Treasury to be used in paying for the marker. %e do this so that
when funds are audited there is no question as tc how the money wes use

L. The State Historical Society will (after they confer with you and of
locally interested parties) select a standard marker from Cklahoma grat'
that can be bought by them at a greatly reduced price. The size and s"
will be determined by consultation with you znd the local people.

5. A cormmittee from the State Historical Society will come t.5 Hominy ar
gather historical facts and write the proposed inscription ¢n the monur
subject to local approvel as long as it is documentary sound.

6. The State Historical Society will have the stone purchased, inscrir’
done, base laid, and stone set at their expense.

7. A great day of unveiling should be planned loczlly. Mr. G. K. Suth<’
(if able) should be put on the program. The local historical officerc
should play a part as well as the loczl board of education and the Che'’
of Commerce. A nice printed vrogram should be made and a rather elabc:
brochure giving &ll of the meny facts that the local people want touri

and loczl citizens to know,




Mrs, Leva Drummond
Page 2
December 3, 1965

8. On this gala day invitations should be sent to the great historians,
newspzpers, radio and television stations, and to members of the State
Historical Society so that a great crowd would gather and pub11c1ty
coverage would be far and wide.

9. For a hundred years school children would read the inscription on this
marker and would know the great citizens of Hominy provided the best
educational facilities for their children and at the same time left a
great heritage to their community.

10. A local museum could be built in a suitable place in town with a
modern attractive building, and a united, peaceful, friendly people should
all contribute to building one--just as your illustrious forefathers all
helped to build the first school.

Your friend,

7))
fs= Y .
"y
4 '/'v - . V)
( e /(—4 ’/\‘\ \ 9

Elbert L. Costner, Fleld Deputy
Cklahcma Historical Society

ccs Mr., Aron Dodson
City Superintendent of Schools
Hominy, Oklahoma




December 5, 1965

Mr. Elmer Fraker

gxecutive Administrator
Cklekoma Bistoricel Society
Uklshcma City, Cxlahoma

Dear !r. Fraker,

Enclosed you will find a clipyping from the Tulsa
sorld cdated December 2, 1¢65. Thies letter is in
regard to the building in the picture.

This small two-room school house wes built in 19C4
by public subscrivtion which is indicated by the
corner stone. The stone wes ocuerried in this ares.
It is the oldest permanent schocl building in

Ceage County - built for the white settlers
children since the (Usage Indians had their own
schools for boys and girle.

Unfortunately this buildins is located in the
middle of the block, and on the scuth side of the
block is & new modern crade sctocl which accomcdeates

the first four ~redes.

we have a new su,erintendent in our school system who
treinks tuis old buildins detrects from the locks of the
newer buildirg, end Lhe Leas ccnvinced the sciocl beard
thet it should be destroyed. Thie buildinz is in

coca repéeir - reeding peint on the windows end doors
cnd perhelvs & new roof- nowever, the old roof acern't
legk. e would like to paint the inside also, &and
perkeps turn the building into a museum cr libreazy.

Severel of the town people have attended twe school
board nmecetings vlescing te keep the ola b iilaing. Ve
have formed an historicel society and obtwuined signers
cn & petition promising to meintain the building, but
aftexrSthe last meetin-, we were told the bu.lding wculd
be destroyed July 1, 1966.

Fighweys 20 &nd ©C bisect ocur town, and we are wordering

if we cen obtain hicsnway merkers calline ettenti'n to the
0ld eckocl building from the Ck aroma Historicsl Society,
thet is of course, if we czn possibly save the o0ld building.
iny informeticn you cen cive us pertaining to weys and
meens of seving this o0ld building will be greatly
erpreciated.

Sincerely,

l'rs. Gent Drum~cnd
319 So. YWocd St.

Rominv. ~-* ~ =~ ==



The little stone schoolhouse still standing on school property
at First and She She in Hominy, Okla. was the first permanent public
school building built in Osage County, Indian Territory. It was erect-
ed in 1904 from stones quarried from the hills west of Hominy by
volunteer labor. It was known as the Fairview School.
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United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service ) For NPS use only
National Register of Historic Places received
Inventory—Nomination Form date entered

See instructions in How to Complete National Register Forms
Type all entries—complete applicable sections

1. Name

: . (A commercial photographer once took an early day postcard
historic 190l Stone School-  gige photo of this school and called it Fairview school,
but this is the only record of this name. )

and or common Same

2. Location

street & number 200 Block, South Pettit Street — not for publication

city, town Hominy — vicinity of
state Oklahoma code LO county Osage code 113
3. Classification
Category wnership ?atus Present Use
—— district < public —_ occupied — agriculture —— museum
X bullding(s) ___ private . —— unoccupied —— commercial — park .
— structure — both . —— work in progress —4 educational — private residence
— site . »f' blic Acquisition Accessible — entertainment — religlous
— object £ in process —— yes: restricted — government — scientific

o being considered X_. yes: unrestricted — Industrial — transportation

—_no — military — other:

4. Owner of Property

name Hominy Public Schbols - Independent School District #38, Mary Lou Cody

stnet&humber Business Office

city, tow.n ‘Hominy '~ — vicinity of state Oklahoma

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Osage County Courthouse

street & number Courthouse

city, town Pawhuska . ’ state  Oklahoma

6. Representation in Existing Surveys ,‘

title has this property been determined eligible? ___yes ___ no
date — federal ___ state _ county ___ locel
depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description

Condition " Check one Check one

—— excellent — deteriorated __ unaltered X original site
X__ good —ruins _X_ aitered —_moved date
— fair — unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Stone School faces north and is situated approximately 75 feet to-the south of First
Street (State Highway 20). A playground is located to the east and north of the :
building and a small parking lot has been built to the west., The Hominy Public School's
elementary complex is located behind and south of the Stone School. The property is
surrounded by a chain link fence and is part of a continuous two-block area of school
buildings and playgrounds.

The exterior of the building is very similar to its original appearance. The building
measures 50 feet long, LO feet wide and is 20 feet high. It was constructed of
locally quarried and "dressed" sandstone blocks. Above the keystone arch over the
front door is carved "Hominy School, 1904 with the four carved backwards (—P ).

There are two windows and a door with a four-light, fan-shaped window above it on the
north side, five windows on the east and two windows and two doors (one currently
closed) on the south. Originally there were five windows on the west side but four
of them were closed with matching sandstone blocks in 1907. The center window was
made into a door for entrance to the new larger school built approximately ten feet to
the west in 1907. This larger building was torn down in the 1950s. The original
wooden windows and frames had suffered extensively from rot and were replaced with
windows of the same dimensions and materials during the present restoration. The front
door and the fan light window above it are also being reproduced. The original vents
and decorative bands of shingles still remain on the front:
* \
The hip roof, currently shingled with brown asphalt on top of the original wooden
shingles, had a bell tower on the north end. The tower was removed sometime in the
19L0s bit was rebuilt in 1980. At that time the school's original bell was returned
to the tower. The flat area on the center of the roof is surrounded by a 12" high
railing. The original had been removed some years earlier but it was reproduced
about 1983. The two original chimneys on the roof are still extant.

. ) R
The interior of the building is presently being remodeled to house the administrative
offices of the Hominy Public School system. The interior was originally one large
room which could be converted into two separate classrooms by use-of .a-sliding panel
door which moved from north to south. It is believed that an east-west interior wall
of plaster and lath was added about the time the larger Horace Mann School was built
to the west in 1907. The interior has been remodeled several times through the years
with various frame partitions added and removed for classrooms and restrooms. The
ceiling was lowered, paneling on the walls added, and a plywood floor and carpet
installed some time in the 1960s.

Recent remodeling has revealed the existance of portions of the original tin celling
still extant although the lowered ceiling has been retained. Removal of the wall
paneling has also revealed the original plastered walls and they have been restored
'in the present remodeling. The original blackboards were made by using a dark gray
smooth plaster on the upper three feet of the room. Unfortunately, most of them had
been painted over a number of years ago.

See continuation sheet,



8. Significance —

Period ’ Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

—— Pprehistoric __._. archeology-prehistoric . .X_ community planning . _ . Iand§ca_pe_architecture.L_. religion

—— 1400-1499 . ___ archeology-historic - ... conservation oo law -—— Sscience

—— 1500-1599 ____ agriculture --— economics ~-... literature -.-— Sculpture

—— 1600-1699 __. architecture X _ education --— military -X— social/

—1700-1799 _ __art - . engineering ——— music humanitarian
1800-1899 ..__ commerce --X_. exploration/settiement ____ philosophy .— theater

I 1900~ | ' '____ communications e iNAUStry —- politics/government  ____ transportation

. ’ .-.— invention — other (specity)

Specific dates 150), _ BuilderArehitask A1 Trulock, Stonemason/Contractor

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph) 7
The rock schoolhouse is significant in the historical development of Hominy for its
association with the pursuit and development of public education in the community,

Before the removal from Kansas to their reservation in Oklahoma (present Osage County),
Osage children had access to some basic schooling at Osage Miszion near the present St.
Paul, Kansas. This mission was established by the Catholic Church

By'18'72,-%he Osages were settled on the reservation in Oklahoma. Some Osage children.
received schooling at Carlisle in Pennsylvania and at Haskell in Lawrence, Kansas., 1In
the 1870s, boarding schools for boys and girls were built on Agency Hill in Pawhuska.
These were supported by the U. S. Government. The Catholic Church opened St. Louis School
for Indian girls in Pawhuska in 1886 and in 1892 opened St. John's school for boys half-
way between Pawhuska and Fairfax.

’ issued to
A license to trade with the Osages at Little Hominy Creek was/the firm of Hale and Phillips
in 1886. Gradually, other white traders and settlers moved to the little trading post,
Quickly seeing the need for their children's education, classes were first held in private
homes. Later a tent was temporarily used until a small frame building was erected on the
banks of the creek. This same small structure was later - .} moved, around 1903, to a
lot closer to the center of the community.

In 1904, construction was started on what has beeh'historically called "the 190} stone
schoolhouse." Permission was received from the U. S. Government and the building was
completed even before surveying for the Hominy townsite was completed.

Funds for the construction came from individuals plus a donation from the Armour Packing
Company. Other monies were raised by box Suppers, ice cream socials, etc. One big fund
raiser involved a new buggy. It was raffled not once but three times in the same evening,
As a result, $300,00 was raised. The school was Supported by subscription and it was the
first permanent school building for non-Indian children built on the Osage Reservation
(Osage County). : ,

In 1909, construction was started on a much larger school building (Horace Mann) immediately
to the west of the 190) building. 1In the 1950s, the three Story building was demolished

to make room for a new elementary school building. The 190l building was untouched, how-
ever it has been used by the school system for various school functisns and activities to
the present time. In 1965, the Hominy Board of Education considered knocking down the old
building but concerned citizens rallied to save it.

r/



9. Major Bibliographical References

Canada, Mrs. M. 0., Mrs. William Watson and Mrs. Ruth E. Million, "Reflections of Early
Day Hominy." Privately Printed, 1978.

See Continuation Sheet = = = - =

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property

Quadrangle name _Hominy Quadrangle scale _1/2L,000

UTM References '

ALl Ll L Ll bt Ly |

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

CLLJ'.ll"ll Lo lalbaad ol Ly L) Lal il
Ll Lo Lol lagld Flod Lo Load Lulalyy |
L Lo o) Lolbal Wl L Lo o bbby ol

Verbal boundary description and justification

North 1/2 Block 39, City of Hominy. FEntire block owned by Hominy Public Schools. South
1/2  occupied by Elementary School building.

List all ttahs and counties for properties ovorlappinq state or county boundaries

state N/A code county code

state N/A - code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titie : - Mrs, Leva Drummond, President

organization Hbminy Heritage Association ) date Sept. 9, 1987
street & number p_ o, B:ox 672 _ telephone 918-885-L,856
city or town Hominy \ state  Oklahoma 74035

12. State Historic Preservation Offlcer Certlflcatlon

The ovaluatod significance of this property within the state is:

" — national — . state — local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procodures set forth by the Natlonal Park Service. :

State Higtoric Preservation Officer signature

)

title ) date
For NPS use only )
| hereby certify that this property Is included in the National Register
date
Keeper of the National Register
Attost: date

Chief of Registration
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United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
inventory—Nomination Form

Continuation sheet ltem number  Seven Page Two

Most of the original beaded siding used as a wainscot is still intact as are the base-
boards. This same detailing has been reproduced on the new partition walls. Removal
of portions of the 1907 wall revealed the existance of the original hardwood floor
under modern plywood. This plywood layer of flooring has been retained during the
current remodeling and will be covered with a new carpet. Early evidence noted that

a vestibule was located at the north end of the interior and this was reconstructed
during the present remodeling.
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United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
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Haines, Joe D. Jr., "Early History of Hominy, Oklahoma," Stillwater; Frontier Press,
1974.

Haines, John D. "History of Hominy," unpublished manuscript, 191l.
Haines, John D, "History of Hominy," unpublished manuscript, 1965.

The Hominy News, various issues.

Hominy News Progress, various issues.

Treadway, Mrs. George B., "Early History of Hominy, Osage Indian Reservation, Indian
Territory, Which Later Became the City of Hominy, Osage County, State of Oklahoma."
Privately Printed, 1936,

Letter: Alfred A. Drummond to Shirley Pettengill August 11, 1987.

Letter: Alfred A. Drummond to Shirley Pettengill August 13, 1987,

Letter: Alfred A. Drummond to Shirley Pettengill October 8, 1987,




‘ Oklahoma Historical SOClCty STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE

Wiley Post Historical Building
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73105
405/521-2491

October 12, 1987

Mrs. Leva Drummond
President

Hominy Heritage Association
319 South Wood

Hominy, Oklahoma 74035

Dear Mrs. Drummond:

On September 17th we received your organization's National
Register of Historic Places nomination form for the 1904
Hominy Schoolhouse. Our staff has carefully reviewed the
submission against federal guidelines, and we are returning
the nomination for revision. We do believe the schoolhouse
is eligible for nomination to the register; however, before
a final decision can be made and the nomination presented

to the Historic Preservation Review Committee, the questions
below must be addressed.

Preparation of National Register forms is never an easy

task. Your first effort was really a good one. Our comments
and questions that follow are designed to help yvou improve
the submission so that it will meet federal standards.

As you work through the revision, please do not hesitate

to contact our office if there are questions. Our review

is divided into two parts. We will first address technical
corrections needed and then the substantive issues.

Technical Review:

1. The photographs provided are acceptable. However,

labels should be the kind that have adhesive over the entire
back surface. A sample is enclosed in the photograph folder.
The yellow stickers used will come off to easily.

2. The appropriate 7.5" series United States Geological
Survey map was not submitted. Please refer to the instruction
sheet for information about the map.
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3. ©Some technical corrections are also needed on the nomina-

tion form itself. The changes needed are provided according
to item number on the form.

Item #1. Historic Name. Provide the actual name by which the

schoolhouse was historically known. For example, was it
known as the "Hominy Subscription School"? Then in the
space for common name indicate by what the building is
known today. If it is the same as the historic name, just
enter "Same".

Item #2. The state code number is "40". The county code
number is "113". The instructions tell you to leave these
spaces blank as you did on the original. However, as other
items must be corrected, pPlease go ahead and insert these
numbers.

/Item #3. For the category entitled "Public Acquisition"

enter "N/A" before "in process" and "being considered".

Also, please change the choice marked under the category
"Accessible". It should be "yves, unrestricted". For National
Register nomination purposes the term "restricted" refers

to whether the building can be seen from a public right of
way rather than whether the building is open or not.

Item #4. If possible, please provide the name of a contact
person on the first line of this section. We must notify
owners by certified mail when the nomination is to be presented
to our review committee. The name of a specific individual

is helpful in this process. Tt will allow us to know for
certain that the owner has indeed received the notification.
Important information is included in that notice that the
owner should consider.

Item #10. The verbal boundary description states the school-
house is located in the center of a block bounded by certain
streets. Are there other buildings on the block? Has the
schoolhouse always been the only building on this block

(that is, is the entire block the historic setting for the
building and all the land owned by the Hominy Public Schools.)
If there are buildings not related to the schoolhouse on

the block, the verbal boundary description will need to be
revised to include only the nominated property. Providing
lot and block numbers is an easy approach.

In the category "List all states and counties for o o« ol
enter "N/A" on each line.



Drummond -- page 3.

Substantive Review

Item #7 and Item #8 are the substantive sections of the
nomination form and are the most difficult to complete.
Again, our comments here are designed only to help you in
your efforts to submit a nomination acceptable to our com-
mittee and the Keeper of the Register.

Item #7. Description -- The information presented on your
original form indicates there is good documentation of the
building's historic appearance and the dates of alterations.
Also, the photographs and materials cause us to conclude
the building has enough historic integrity to be eligible
for nomination to the National Register. The main problems
with the section are terminology and organization.

Begin the section with a paraaraph summarizing the setting

in which the schoolhouse is located. Then in subsequent
paragraphs describe the present appearance of the building's
exterior and interior. Then discuss alterations to the
building and provide dates of the changes if known. Conclude
with a paragraph summarizing the impact of alterations on

the historic integrity of the building. It is very important
that standardized architectural terminology be use to describe
the building. Information that should be included in such

a description is the dimensions of the building, the number
of stories, the roof shape, building materials, type and
placement of windows and doors, and decorate features of the
building just as it looks today. Describe the interior

by explaining how many rooms there are, the wall finishes,
ceilings, and floors, etc. You will find an architectural
style guide quite helpful in preparing this section.

Because historic photographs of the schoolhouse are available,
it would be very important to provide prints of them with

the nomination. As restoration work on the schoolhouse

was based on these pictures, it will do much to demonstrate
to our committee and the Keeper of the Register that the

work is accurate rather than conjecture. Label these pho-

tographs in the same way as you label the ones of the current
appearance.

Item #8. Statement of Significance -- In justifying a prop-
erty for inclusion in the National Register it is important
to remember one area of significance is enough. While some
properties do indeed have significance in more than one area,
this does not appear to be the case for the schoolhouse.
Significance in "education" seems the area that can be jus-
tified. Many uses were obviously made of the building,

but there is not enough evidence provided that would cause
them to be accepted as reasons for listing in the National
Register of Historic Places.
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The narrative section of Item #8 should begin with a state-
ment similar to "The rock schoolhouse is significant in the
historical development of Hominy for its association with

the development of public education in the community.".

Then in subsequent paragraphs provide in standard historical
narrative style the reasons why the schoolhouse is so im-
portant. In checking the bibliographic references on the form,
we have only one of the sources available to us, The Early
History of Hominy, Oklahoma. This source states there was

a frame schoolhouse before the stone building was constructed.
Therefore, the claim that the nominated schoolhouse is the
first school is not appropriate. It would be quite acceptable
to state that it is the oldest remaining such building used

in the education of non-Indian students in Hominy. It is

not necessary that it be the first school building to be
eligibile for the National Register.

The narrative section will be strengthened with a discussion
of historical background of education in the area. Explain
how the Indian children were educated. When were their
schools established and how were they supported. Explain
how and when the Osage Nation was opened to white settlers.
Then discuss the efforts to provide public education for the
non-Indian children. Make it clear that the nominated
property was important in the development of education in
Hominy. Describe how this particular schoolhouse was funded,

and how was it supported. How long did the building serve
as a schoolhouse?

In the bibliography be careful to cite all sources used to
obtain the historical information. Provide copies of these
materials (or applicable sections) with the nomination form.
While this material will not accompany the nomination to

the Keeper of the Register, we are required to have it on
file in our office. This is especially important when items
such as unpublished manuscripts are cited. We have no way
to check the facts presented when the materials are not
available to us.

We have included a blank nomination form for your use.

If additional continuation sheets are needed, please use
the one provided to make copies on archival quality paper.
As this form is being phased out additional continuation
sheets are no longer available. It is important that the
revised nomination be submitted to us in acceptable form
no later than June 1, 1988. We cannot process submissions
on this form for submission to the Keeper of the Register
after that date. If you may have any questions, please
do not hesitate to contact our office.
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Sincerely,

77 olorom=Plo o.of

Melvena Heisch
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

MH :mh

Enclosures



,'," ;@{‘ Oklahoma Historical Society

Wiley Post Historical Building
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73105
405/521-2491

23 March 1988

Ms. Mary Lou Cody
Hominy Public School
Business Office
Hominy, OK 74035

Dear Ms. Cody:

We are pleased to inform you that the property which you own,
the 1904 Stone School, located 200 Block, S. Pettit Street in
Hominy, OK, will be considered by the Historic Preservation
Review Committee for nomination to the National Register of
Historic Places and the Oklahoma State Register of Historic
Places. The National Register is the Federal government's
official listing of historic properties worthy of
preservation. Listing in the National Register provides
recognition and assists in preserving our nation's heritage.
Enclosed is a copy of the criteria under which properties are
evaluated.

Listing of the 1904 Stone School provides recognition of the
community's historic importance and assures protective review
of Federal projects that might adversely affect the character
of the historic 1904 Stone School. If the property is listed
in the National Register, certain Federal investment tax
credits for rehabilitation and other provisions may apply.

Listing 1in the National Register does not mean that
limitations will be placed on the properties by the Federal
government. Public visitation rights are not required of
owners. The Federal government will not attach restrictive
covenants to the properties or seek to acquire them. Listing .
on the State Register does not mean that limitations will be
placed on the properties by the State. The State will not
require public visitation, or attach restrictive covenants to
the properties.

You are invited to attend the Historic Preservation Review
Committee meeting at which the nomination will be considered.
The Committee will meet at 10:00a.m. on 26 April 1988, at the
Oklahoma Historical Society Boardroom, 19th and Lincoln Blvd,
Oklahoma City, OK.

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION QFFICE
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Attached you will find a notice that explains in greater detail
the results of 1listing in the National Register and that
describes the rights and procedures by which an owner may comment
on or object to listing in the National Register.

Should you have any questions about this nomination before the
Historic Preservation Review Committee meeting, please contact
Ms. Melvena Heisch of our office at 405/521-2491.

Sincerely,

. a

J. Blake Wade

State Historic
Preservation Officer

JBW:gp

Enclosures



